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James City Service Authority

October 24, 2013

To the Citizens of James City County:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the James City Service Authority, a component unit of the
County of James City, Virginia, for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012, is hereby submitted. This
report presents the financial position of all fund types of the James City Service Authority (JCSA) and the results
of operations for the years then ended.
The JCSA financial records have been audited by Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP. Their opinion and
management's accompanying statements comprise the Financial Section of this report. This report was prepared
by the JCSA, and responsibility for both the accuracy of the information presented and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the JCSA. We believe the information as
presented is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the
financial position and results of operations of the JCSA as measured by the financial activity of its various legal
funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the JCSA 's
financial activity have been included . The funds included in our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report are
controlled solely by the JCSA.
Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview,
and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction
with it. JCSA's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors on pages 3-8
of this report.

The Reporting Entity and

[ts

Services

The James City Service Authority is a public body politic and corporate of the Commonwealth of Virginia. The
JCSA was created in 1969 by the James City County Board of Supervisors pursuant to the Virginia Water and
Sewer Authorities Act (Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended) . The JCSA was created to acquire, construct,
operate and maintain, to the extent determined by the JCSA to be financially feasible, an integrated water system
and an integrated sewer collection system in James City County (County). The Board of Directors is appointed
by the Board of Supervisors. Since 1976, the Board of Supervisors has appointed its members as Directors of the
JCSA to more fully coordinate JCSA activities with those of the County in the planning and development of
utility systems.
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The Board of Supervisors has authorized water and sewer operations for the JCSA within the Primary Service
Area (PSA) in the County. With the approval of the County, the JCSA has extended services beyond the PSA to
several public sites in the County, including three public schools, Freedom Park and Governor's Land, a major
planned community. The JCSA also provides water and/or sewer service to limited sections of York County and
the City of Williamsburg with the concurrence of the appropriate governing bodies.
The JCSA' s water system includes the central water system with I 0 water production facilities, and seven
independent water production facilities that are located outside the PSA There are approximately 393 miles of
water transmission and distribution lines throughout the entire system. The water system facilities supply
approximately 4.7 million gallons of water per day to 20,549 water customers.
The JCSA's sewer system includes 76 pump stations with approximately 425 miles of sewer collection lines.
The sewer system facilities collect and move approximately 5 million gallons of sewage per day for 21,962 sewer
customers. The JCSA has no sewage treatment facilities. Sewage treatment for areas served by the JCSA, as
well as for other Hampton Roads communities, is provided by the Hampton Roads Sanitation District (HRSD).
As of June 30, 2013, the JCSA had 89 full-time and 2 part-time employees with the responsibility to operate and
maintain its utility facilities and lines. The JCSA' s operating funds are self-supporting and the JCSA receives no
share of any local or property tax levies. The Board of Directors has the sole power to set water and sewer utility
rates and related fees. The Board of Directors adopted an inverted-block or inclining rate structure in 1996 to be
effective for fiscal year 1997 for residential customers which incorporates a unit charge that increases with
increasing consumption. The primary objective of establishing the inverted-block rate structure was to promote
water conservation, particularly from large-volume residential customers. On July I, 2008, the residential water
consumption service charge was set at the first block for $2.80 per 1,000 gallons for less than 15,000 gallons
consumed per quarter, the second block was set at $3.45 per 1,000 gallons for more than 15,000 gallons but less
than 30,000 gallons consumed per quarter, and a third block was set at $9.80 per 1,000 gallons for more than
30,000 gallons consumed per quarter. Commercial and industrial customers were set at a flat or uniform rate
structure of $3.45 per 1,000 gallons. On July I, 2012, the sewer service charge for all categories of customers
was set to $3.22 per 1,000 gallons.
Economic Condition and Outlook
James City County is located near the cities of Hampton, Newport News, and Williamsburg, and the County of
York. Major employers within commuting distance include Anheuser-Busch, Owens Brockway, Ball Metal,
Newport News Shipbuilding, Langley Air Force Base, Fort Eustis, Fort Monroe, Colonial Williamsburg
Foundation, and the National Aeronautics and Space Administration. The County's population grew 39 percent
from 2000 to 2010 while the state population increased only 13 percent during the past decade. James City
County had modest growth over the past several years as the economic climate gradually improved. A
historically fast-growing population and expanding commercial base enhances the long term economic outlook
for the JCSA
Major Initiatives
In January 20 I 3, the JCSA paid off the revenue bonds that were issued in 2003 in the amount of $14,635,000 and
had an outstanding balance of $7,005,000. The revenue bonds were issued to finance a groundwater treatment
facility, wells, and water transmission lines.
The JCSA currently has groundwater permits for its central system to withdraw 8.9 million gallons per day to
support residential and commercial customers. In March 2008, the JCSA entered into an agreement with
Newport News to purchase 4 million gallons of potable water capacity per day per calendar year depending on
climatic conditions to meet the County's water supply needs through 2040. The first of two $25 million
payments for the purchase of the water was made on December 31, 2008. The JCSA sponsored a $25 million
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bond issue in the fall of 2008 to fund the first installment. A decision to make the second installment of
million will have to be made by 2018. Should the JCSA Board of Directors decide not to make the second
installment, all water allocations provided for within the contract will be reduced by 50%.
Water conservation is an important component of meeting future water needs. The JCSA has initiated the ''Let's
be Water Smart" program which is a partnership with local businesses involved in the landscape industry. The
partnership promotes the importance of using water wisely. The JCSA is one of a few public water utilities in
Virginia to offer rebates to residential customers for installing water conserving devices like rain barrels, and
water efficient washing machines, dishwashers, toilets, etc.
During fiscal year 2013, the majority of the Jamestown Road and Indigo Dam Road water line replacement
project was completed. Improvements to the Ironbound Road Water Storage Facility and Stonehouse Water
Production Facility were completed in fiscal year 201 I along with the installation of a major water transmission
line on Longhill Connector Road. The JCSA completed a major water transmission line along Ironbound Road
from Monticello A venue to the Mews on Longhi II Road.
In fiscal year 2005, the JCSA completed the first phase of a 5 million gallon per day (mgd) groundwater
treatment facility which uses reverse osmosis technology to treat water from the Potomac Aquifer. The first
phase of the project was capable of treating 2.5 mgd. The second phase was completed in fiscal year 2007,
providing full capacity of 5 mgd. The facility, along with other water production facilities, is projected to meet
the JCSA's water needs through approximately 2020 depending on customer growth levels. The cost of this
project was approximately $20 million. The JCSA intends to continue to use groundwater as a vital component
in meeting future water demands. Current water supply, along with that purchased from Newport News, should
meet the JCSA's water needs through 2040. Additionally, the JCSA has completed two I .25 million gallon
water storage tanks that will enhance water flows and pressures during peak demands in the water system.
There are currently 76 pump stations in the JCSA sewer collection system. A systematic plan has been
developed to analyze and determine what upgrade and rehabilitative measures are required to extend their life
and meet the demands of increased usage. Existing pump stations and force mains may have to be upgraded or
replaced to accommodate future planned developments.
The Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to sign an Order by Consent with the Virginia
Department of Environmental Quality in June 2007 to establish milestones for its efforts to reduce infiltration
and inflow of extraneous water into the sewer system. This will be an expensive and long-term effort that will
complement the JCSA's on-going efforts to minimize sewer system overflows. The JCSA completed Sanitary
Sewer Evaluation Survey (SSES) field investigations that included manhole inspections, smoke testing, and
closed circuit television inspection of sewer mains to identify deficiencies within its sewer collections system.
Once all are identified, sewer infrastructure deficiencies will be prioritized and addressed in a long range
rehabilitation plan to be implemented over the ensuing approximately 20 years.
In fiscal year 2013, rehabilitation work started on the improvement of the sewer interceptor in the Lift Station 1-5
basin (upper reaches of Powhatan Creek) along Chisel Run to Olde Towne Road near Route 60. During fiscal
year 2011, the JCSA completed the second phase of the rehabilitation of Powhatan Interceptor beginning at Lift
Station 1-2 following Powhatan Creek to the Ford's Colony Development. Also during fiscal year 201 I, the
JCSA completed the second phase of rehabilitating the Powhatan Creek gravity sewer interceptor. The project
began near Jamestown High School on Route 5 following Powhatan Creek up to the Ford's Colony
Development. Contracts for a third phase of this project have been awarded and will be completed during fiscal
year 2014. A significant amount of infiltration of extraneous water was eliminated following rehabilitation as
determined through follow-up flow monitoring, which meets a goal of the DEQ consent order mentioned below.
The JCSA has completed implementation of a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System,
which will enable the JCSA to maintain and control water and wastewater facility operations during normal
Vll

conditions and
while compiling historical data. SCADA is a highly reliable system that takes
advantage of modern computer technologies, which are highly efficient and cost effective. The capabilities and
use of the SCAD A system continues to grow and is part of the JCSA' s on-going efforts to more efficiently
operate its water and sewer systems.
The JCSA recently completed upgrading its Hansen Maintenance and Operations Software to better
accommodate its infrastructure and customers. The software is state of the art and will allow the JCSA to
integrate its SCADA and Geographic Information System into its work order and asset management systems. A
new 12,500 square foot Operations Center located at 119 Tewning Road opened in October, 2011. It houses the
JCSA field operations and engineering team members along with the centralized SCADA and Hansen work order
management systems.

Accounting System and Budgetary Control
The JCSA's accounting records are maintained on a full accrual basis incorporating the principles of enterprise
fund accounting. Basically, this approach presents the statements on a profit and loss basis, including a provision
for depreciation, which is comparable to private industry.
In developing and evaluating the JCSA accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal
accounting controls. The controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding: I)
the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and, 2) the reliability of financial
records for preparing the financial statements.
All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework using the concept of reasonable assurance and
recognizing: 1) the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and, 2) the evaluation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.
We believe the JCSA' s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable
assurance of the proper recording of financial transactions.
Budgetary control for the JCSA is maintained by the accounting office under the guidelines of the Treasurer.
Encumbrance of estimated purchase amounts is an important part of the system.

Awards
For the twenty-eighth year, the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to James City Service
Authority, for its component unit financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. In order to be awarded
a Certificate of Achievement, the JCSA must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to
conform to Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

/11depe11de11t Auditors' Report
Board of Directors
James City Service Authority
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the James City Service
Authority (the "Authority''), a component unit of the County of James City, Virginia, as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's
basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
James City Service Authority's management.
1llanageme11t's Re~ponsibility for the Fi11a11ci(l/ St(ltements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes the design, implementation.
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Re.\ponsihility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards» issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States: and Specifications for Audits o/Authorities, Boards and Commissions issued by the Auditor of Public
Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence, about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments.
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly. we express no such opinion.
An audit includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
op1111ons.
Opi11ions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects. the financial position
of the James City Service Authority as of June 30. 2013 and 2012, and the changes in net position and cash flows
thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis and schedule of funding progress on pages 3-8 and 35 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information of consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Jumes Ci(r Service Autltority 's basic financial statements. The statements of net position - by activity. schedule
of revenues. expenses, and changes in net position - by activity, and schedule of operating revenues and expenses budget and actual by activity are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.
The statements of net position - by activity. schedule of revenues, expenses. and changes in net position
by
activity, and schedule of operating revenues and expenses - budget and actual by activity are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves. and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the statements of net position - by activity.
schedule of revenues. expenses, and changes in net position by activity, and schedule of operating revenues and
expenses budget and actual by activity are fairly stated. in all material respects. in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
The introductory section and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and. accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Otlter Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 24. 2013. on our
consideration of the James City Service Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws. regulatio11s, contracts. and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting: and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmem
Auditing Standards in considering James City Service Autlwri(r's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Newport News. Virginia
October 24. 2013
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JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2013 and 2012

This section of the James City Service Authority's (the Authority or JCSA) annual financial report presents our
discussion and analysis of the Authority's financial performance during fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012.
Financial Highlights for Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012

*

The Authority's total net position was $172,775,615 and $174,449,702 at June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

*

The Authority's total operating expenses before depreciation and amortization increased by 0.1 % in 2013
from 2012. Total operating expenses before depreciation and amortization increased by 2.7% in 2012 from
2011, which was primarily due to an increase in utility costs related to opening the new Operations Center.
The expenses also increased from storm costs incurred from damage during Hurricane Irene in August 2011,
but were offset by reimbursements received from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

* The Authority's total operating revenues remained relatively flat, decreasing by 0.1 % in 2013 from 2012.
Total operating revenues decreased by 5% in 2012 from 2011, which was primarily due to less water
production during the fall months due to cooler temperatures and an increase in rainfall.

* Capital assets decreased by 1.6% in 2013 from 2012. This was primarily due to depreciation expense during

the current year. For fiscal year 2013, there was formal acceptance of 9 new water system dedications and 11
new sewer system dedications. In addition, capital assets decreased by 1.2% in 2012 from 2011. This was
primarily due to depreciation. For fiscal year 2012, there was formal acceptance of 14 new water system
dedications and 12 new sewer system dedications.

*

In January 2013, the Authority paid off revenue bonds that were issued in 2003 in the amount of $14,650,000
and had an outstanding balance of $7,005,000. There was also a reduction in investments used to payoff this
outstanding obligation.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The financial section of this report has two components - Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section)
and the basic financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of the balance sheets, statements
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, statements of cash flows, and notes to the basic financial
statements.
Transactions are accounted for under the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting similar to an enterprise fund. Accordingly, revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses
are recognized when they are incurred. Enterprise funds are used to account for activities that are financed and
operated similar to those often found in the private sector.
Financial Analysis
Net position is a financial measure that compares an entity's assets and deferred outflows of resources to its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Over time, increases and decreases in net position are one indicator
of whether the Authority's financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, it is also important to
consider other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in economic conditions, population and service area growth,
and new or changed legislation.
3

JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2013 and 2012

The Authority's net position decreased by $1,674,087 in 2013 from 2012. This was primarily a result of a
reduction in investments used to payoff the 2003 series revenue bonds. There were also fewer water and sewer
system dedications in 2013 than in 2012. The Authority's net position remained relatively flat, only increasing
by $9,436 in 2012 from 2011. During 2012 there was a decrease in water service revenue and an increase in
utility costs related to opening the new Operations Center. In addition, there were more water and sewer system
dedications in 2012 than in 2011 .

Condensed Statements of Net Position Information at June 30
2013
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

$
I
$

$

Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in capital
assets
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net position
$

35,973,977 $
151.206

2012
42.473,255 $
167.810.314

2011
42,526,676 $
169,831,622

201,125,183

2013 vs. 2012
% Change
$Change
(6,499,278)
(2,659, I08)

(15.3)%
( 1.6)

(9, 158,386)

(4.4)

4,201,623 $
31,632,244

4,716,800 $
33,201,232

(818.410)
(6,665,889)

(19.5)
(21.1)

28.349.568

35,833,867

37,918,032

(7,484,299)

(20.9)

139,966,206
2,620,384
30,189,025

134,872.139
4,876,760
34,700,803

135,641,623
4,740,769
34,057,874

5,094,067
(2,256,376)
(4,511,778)

3.8
(46.3)
(13.0)

172.775,615

174,449, 702

174,440,266

( 1,674,087)

(1.0)

201,125,183 $

210,283,569 $

212,358,298 $

(9, 158,386)

(4.4)%

3,383,213 $

The change in net position can also be determined by reviewing the following condensed statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position information.
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JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position Infonnation
Years ended June 30
2013
2012
2012
2011
$Change
% Change
11,718,297 $
2.4%
12.603.818 $
284.236
Water and sewer services
$
12.002.533 $
100.0
Reimbursement for storm costs
Other
Total revenues
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Operating supplies
Maintenance of buiklings and
equipment
Utilities
Contractual fees
Storm costs
Other
Depreciation and amorti?_ation

4.306.155
1,636,038
822.882

4.144,696
1.584.707
899.095

4.()40.543
1.585.037
888,559

161,459
51.331

3.9
3.2

3.364.910
862.665
910.491

3.065.512
917.498
882.505
359.921
560.671
7,469.016

3,193.I 16
813,478
873.110

299.398

9.8

27.986

3.2
100.0

19.883.621
3,165,330
351.929

19,364.945
3.839.702
509,675

5()4.573
7.723.800
20.131.514
3.868.654

Total expenses
Facility charges
Investment income (loss)
Gain (loss) on disposal of
capital assets
Interest:, net

.249.l l J)

(HU))

22.2%
(l

1454 9)

2.851.986

Total nonoperating revenues
Loss before capital contributions
Capital contributions

4,600,645

5.395.362

174.449,702
172.775.615 $

174.440,266
174.449,702 $

('1.422.08 l)
1,750,073

9.436

Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year
Net position at end of year

697.629

$

176.112,274
174.440.266 $

9.436
( U174.rnm

0.0
<l.0)%

---=-----------=-----

In fiscal year 2013, water and sewer service revenue increased by 2.4% over 2012. However, this was less than
the adopted budget by $1,029,681 due to increased rainfall in the second half of the fiscal year. The Authority
received $13,362 in proffers from developers to fund capital improvements, which was $13,605 less than what
was received during 2012. There was an increase in the facility charges collected during 2013. New water
connections increased to 448 in 2013 from 351 in 2012 and new sewer connections increased to 347 in 2013
from 296 in 2012. The non operating revenues decreased in 2013 due to the payoff of the 2003 series revenue
bonds in January 2013. Upon issuance of the bonds, there was a municipal bond debt service insurance policy
that was opened and held in the debt service reserve account. Once the bonds were paid off, this was eliminated.
In fiscal year 2012, water and sewer service revenue decreased 7% from 2011, which was primarily due to a
decrease in water production during the fall months because of cooler temperatures and increased rainfall. The
Authority received $26,967 in proffers from developers to fund capital improvements, which was $98,225 less
than what was received during 2011. There was a decrease in nonoperating revenues because more interest was
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earned on investments in 2011 than in 2012. There was also a decrease in facility charges collected during 2012.
New water connections decreased to 351 in 2012 from 388 in 2011 and new sewer connections decreased to 296
in 2012 from 375 in 201 l. Total expenses increased from 2011 by 2.2%, which was primarily a result of
increased utility costs related to opening the new Operations Center and costs incurred from damage during
Hurricane Irene in August 2011 .

Capital Assets
At the end of fiscal year 2013, the Authority had invested $165, 151,206 in a broad range of capital assets,
including land and land improvements, water and sewer systems, office fixtures and equipment, and automotive
equipment. This amount represents a 1.6% net decrease from last year, which was primarily the result of
depreciation expense during fiscal year 2013. Construction in progress decreased by 14.3% over last year. This
decrease was primarily a result of completing the lronbound water main. This year, preliminary design work was
completed for the Mirror Lakes Dam mitigation.
At the end of fiscal year 2012, the Authority had invested $167 ,810,314 in a broad range of capital assets,
including land and land improvements, water and sewer systems, office fixtures and equipment, and automotive
equipment. This amount represents a 1.2% net decrease from 2011, which was primarily the result of
depreciation expense during fiscal year 2012. Construction in progress decreased by 90.2% over 2011. This
decrease was primarily a result of completing the Tewning Road Operations Center, Ironbound Road booster
improvements and the Longhill Road connector water main. Additionally, preliminary design work was
completed for the Jamestown Road and Indigo Dam Road water line replacement projects.
For further information, see Notes to Basic Financial Statements (pgs. 13-33). Additional information on the
Authority's capital assets can be found in Note 3 on pages 22-23. The table on the following page summarizes
the Authority's capital assets at June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011:
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2013
Utility plant:
Land
Water and sewer system<;

962.695

Total utility plant
Nonutility property:
Land
Central shop
Office fixtures and equipment
Land improvements
Automotive equipment
Total nonutility property
Intangible assets:
Easements
Water rights
Total intangible assets
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
and amorti?.ation
Net capital assets

$

2012
$

962.695

2011
$

962.695

234,370.439

229.785.564

1,750.391
4.860.309
1,669,073
13.183
12

1.750,391
4,817,690
1.482.163
13.183

1,750.391
2,270.619
1,168,028
13.183

I0,704.468

10.436,886

7.566.112

4.570
25.000,000

4.570
25.000,000

4.570
25.000.000

25,()04,570

25.004.570

25.004.570

510.598

595.777

6.051.258

105.438.869

98.012.483

90.830.683

-----165.151.206

$

167.810.314

$

169.831,622

Debt Administration
At the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority's total outstanding bonded debt was $25, 185,000 (before
premiums). At the close of the fiscal year 2012, the Authority's total outstanding debt was $32,700,000 (before
premiums). During fiscal year 2012, both Standard & Poor's and Moody's Investors Service affirmed their
ratings of AA+ and Aa2, respectively, for the Authority's outstanding bonded debt.
In August 2008, the Authority issued revenue bonds totaling $27, 120,000 to finance the purchase from the City
of Newport News, Virginia of a "safe yield share" of treated water capacity from the King William Reservoir
Project or an alternate water supply source. The Authority also experienced an upgrade to their bond rating to
AA+ by Standard & Poor's and Aa3 by Moody's Investors Service. Standard & Poor's issues ratings ranging
from AAA to D to designate the relative investment qualities of bonds. Moody's issues ratings ranging from Aaa
to C to designate the relative investment qualities of bonds.
In January 2013, the Authority paid off revenue bonds that were issued in 2003 in the amount of $14,650,000 and
had an outstanding balance of $7,005,000. The bonds were issued to finance a groundwater treatment facility,
wells, and water transmission lines and to provide for the costs of issuing the bonds and funding any necessary
reserves. The revenue bonds had been rated Aaa from Moody's and AAA from Standard & Poor's rating
services, based on the municipal bond insurance policy by the Insurer. For further information on the Authority's
outstanding debt, see Note 5 on pages 24-25.
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Economic Factors and Next Year Budgets and Rates

During the current fiscal year, the unrestricted net position decreased by $4,273,604 to approximately $30.2
million from 2012 due to paying off the 2003 revenue bonds. The Authority did not appropriate any of this for
spending as part of the fiscal year 2014 budget.
The JCSA's budget consists of five separate funds: Administration, Water, Sewer, Capital Improvements
Program and Debt Service. The administrative fund allocation is expected to increase by 0.2% in fiscal year
2014 from the 2013 budget, which is primarily a result of an increase in salaries, health insurance premiums, fuel
and maintenance coverage for the Operations Center HV AC system after the initial warranty period. Capital
equipment outlay includes two vehicle replacements.
Overall, the portion of the budget for water operations is projected to decrease by 2.5% in fiscal year 2014 from
the 2013 budget. There is a projected decrease in the water service charges due to declining per capita daily water
demand. Investment income is expected to decrease due to current market conditions and continued conservative
expectations for investment returns over the next year. Direct expenses are budgeted to decrease 3.3% in fiscal
year 2014 from the 2013 budget. Capital equipment outlay includes one vehicle replacement.
Overall, the fiscal year 2014 sewer operating budget will decrease by 2.3% from the 2013 budget. The sewer
service charges are expected to decrease due to declining per capita daily water demand. Sewer service charges
are based on the same meter readings used to calculate water charges. Direct expenses are budgeted to decrease
3.5% from the 2013 budget. Capital equipment outlay includes one vehicle replacement. The sewer operating
budget also includes a transfer to the Capital Improvements Program to fund the sewer infrastructure
rehabilitation program requirements of the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality's consent order.

Contacting the Authority's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview of the
Authority's finances and to demonstrate the Authority's accountability for the money it receives. Questions
concerning this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the James City County
Department of Financial and Management Services, 101-F Mounts Bay Road, P.O. Box 8784, Williamsburg,
Virginia 23187-8784.
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Exhibit l
JAMES CITY SERVICE At:THORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Jame' City. Virginia)
Statements of Net Position
June JO. 2013 and 2012

2012

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Investments (note 2)
Accounts receivable. customers
Accounb receivable. other
Note receivable (note 12)
Interest receivable
Inventories

666.123
28.596.424
2.530.817
88.940
86.585

699.024
32.590.092
2.471.587
285.962
118.651
89.863
37.002.595

Total current assets

962.695
Water and sewer systems
229, 785.564

Total utility plant
Nonutility property:
Land
Central shop
Office fixtures and equipment
Land
equipment
Total nonutility property
Intangible a:"ets:
Easements
Water rights

rota! intangible assets
Constrnction in progress (note 11)

1.750.391
4.860.309
I .669.073
13.183
2.411.512

1.750.391
4.817.690
1.482.163
13.183
2.373.459

10.704.468

10.436.886

4.570
25.000.000

4.570
25.000.000

25.004.570

25.004.570

510.598

595.777

2.620.384

4.876.760

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net capital assets
Investments restricted for futnre use (note 2)

489.531

Bond issuance costs. net (note 5 l
Total noncurrent assets

210.283.569

$

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable. trade
Accmed salaries
Compensated absences, current portion (notes 5 and 6)
Due to James City County (note I 0)
Deposits
Interest payable
Deferred liability (note l2J
Current portion of bonds payable, including unamortized premium (note 5)

$

786.477
13.258
305.833
1.078.608
160.764
513.273

252.0IO
14.927
290.347
1.235.087
133.117
680.096
9.915
1.586.124

3.383.213

4.201.623

32.902
171.509
101.944
24,660.000

32.902
150.509
96.782
31.352.051

Total noncurrent liabilities

24.966.355

31.632.244

Total liabilities

28.349.568

35.833.867

139,966.206
2.620.384

134.872.139
4.876,760
34.700.803

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances for constrnction (note 4)
OPEB liability (note 8)
Compensated absences. net of current portion (notes 5 and 6)
Bonds payable. including unamortized premium, net of current portion (note 5)

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

lO

172.775.615

174.449.702

201 .125.183

2 I 0.283.569

Exhibit 2
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013
Operating revenues:
Water and sewer services
Water supply proffers
Rental income (note I 0)
Reimbursement for storm costs
Other

$

12,002,533
13,362
164,875

2012
11,718,297
26,967
144,381
349,541
198,025

11

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Salaries (note 6)
Fringe benefits (note 6)
Operating supplies
Maintenance of buildings and equipment
Utilities
Contractual fees (note I 0)
Storm costs
Other

4,306,155
1,636,038
822,882
3,364,910
862,665
910,491
504,573

4,144,696
1,584,707
899,095
3,065,512
917,498
882,505
359,921
560,671

12,407,714

12,414,605

15,084

22,606

7,723,800

7,469,016

Operating loss

(7,708,716)

(7,446,410)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Facility charges
Investment income (loss)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Interest, net

3,868,654
(1,249, 111)
(44,507)
(1,141,052)

3, 165,330
351,929
21,285
( 1,478,060)

1,433,984

2,060,484

(6,274,732)

(5,385,926)

4,600,645

5,395,362

( 1,674,087)

9,436

174,449,702

174,440,266

172,775,615

174,449,702

Total operating expenses
Operating income before depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization

Net nonoperating revenues
Loss before capital contributions
Capital asset contributions
Changes in net position
Net position at beginning of year
Net position at end of year

$

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit 3
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Other cash receipts
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for personnel services
Facility charges

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

11,624.054
514.592
(6.940.023)
(5,724,131)
165.330

4.432.755

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Payments of debt
Interest paid
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

(7 ,515.000)
( 1.546.050)
(415,385)
lI

(1.490.000)
( 1.544.243)
(21.294)
24.227

(9.465.235)

(3.031.3 l 0)

(32.575.533)
37.440,133
134.979

(38,111,812)
38.l 54.089
369.937

4.999.579

412,214

(32.901)

20,726

699,024

678.298

$

666,123

699.024

$

(7,708,716)

(7,446,410)

7,723,800
3,868,654

7,469.016
3.165.330

(59,230)
197.022
32,066
(56.540)
534.467
18,979
(156.479)
27.647
(9.915)
21,000

(99.025)
(227.140)
270.102
35,931
(253,376)
(15,728)
(37,376)
4,782
(247,284)
21,000

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Facility charges
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, customers
Accounts receivable, other
Notes receivable
Inventories
Accounts payable, trade
Accrued salaries
Due to James City County
Deposits
Deferred liability
OPEB liability
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities
Supplemental schedules:
Noncash capital activities:
Capital asset contributions
Noncash investing activity:
Unrealized gain (loss) from change in fair value of investments
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

11,970,950
639.438
(6.144.073)
(5.902.214)

2012

12

l 2,141 ,47 l

10,086.232

$

4,432,755

2.639.822

$

4.600,645

5,395.362

$

(J03.0l6)

11,71 l

JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

(1)

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The James City Service Authority (the Authority) was established on June 30, 1969, by resolution of the
Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia (the County, or Primary Government), and was
chartered by the Commonwealth of Virginia, State Corporation Commission in July 1969 to provide water
and sewer service to County residents as permitted under the Code of Virginia ( 1950), as amended
(the Enabling Act).
The Enabling Act authorizes the Authority, among other things, to: a) acquire, construct, improve, extend,
operate, and maintain any water, sewer, sewage disposal, or garbage/refuse collection and disposal system;
b) issue revenue bonds of the Authority, payable solely from revenues, to pay all or any part of the cost of
such systems; c) fix, revise, charge, and collect rates, fees, and charges for the use of and for the services
furnished or to be furnished by any system operated by the Authority; and d) enter into contracts with the
Commonwealth of Virginia, or with any municipality, county, corporation, individual, or any public
authority or unit thereof, relating to the services and facilities of any such system of the Authority. Further,
the Enabling Act provides that the Authority is subject in all respects to the jurisdiction of the Department
of Environmental Quality - Water Division (DEQ), formerly the State Water Control Board of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, under the provision of the State Water Control Law.
The Authority's governing body is appointed by the County's Board of Supervisors, although the
Authority is legally separate. The County's Board of Supervisors is the appointed Board of Directors of the
Authority.
The County can impose its will over the Authority, significantly influencing the programs, projects,
activities, or levels of service. Although a financial benefit or burden relationship may not exist, the
County is financially accountable. The Authority is accounted for as a proprietary fund and its financial
statements have been blended with the County's financial statements for reporting purposes.

(a)

Basis of Accounting and Presentation
The Authority prepares its financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The Authority, which reports its financial statements
similar to an enterprise fund, has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board
(APB) opinions, issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with
or contradict GASB pronouncements. The Authority uses the economic resources management focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Current assets include cash and amounts
convertible to cash during the next normal operating cycle, or one year. Current liabilities include
those obligations to be liquidated with current assets. The Authority generally first uses restricted
assets for expenses incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted assets are available. The
Authority may defer the use of restricted assets based on a review of the specific transaction.
The Authority's financial statements are presented in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's
Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments. Since the Authority is only engaged in
business-type activities, it is required to present only the financial statements required for enterprise
13
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funds. The basic financial statements consist of Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Statements of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial
Statements.

(b)

Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly
liquid investments that are both (a) readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and (b) so near the
maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.
Generally, the Authority considers investments with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

(c)

Investments
All investments of the Authority are stated at fair value as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, in accordance
with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools.

(d)

Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost and are charged against operations on an average cost basis. They
consist of water meters, pipes, and parts required to repair the utility systems.

(e)

Capital Assets
All direct costs of water and sewer transmission facilities constructed are capitalized. In addition,
interest and amortization of bond and trustee expense, where applicable, are capitalized during the
period of construction. Interest expense is reduced to the extent of any interest income earned on
investment of bond proceeds. Nonutility property is capitalized at cost.
The Authority's policy is to capitalize capital assets with a cost or fair value at the date of donation
of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or greater. The cost of major improvements is capitalized, while the
cost of maintenance and repairs, which does not improve or extend the life of an asset, is expensed.
The Authority provides for depreciation of capital assets using the straight-line method at amounts
estimated to amortize the cost or basis of the assets over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
40 years
30 years
3-40 years

Sewer systems
Water systems
Equipment and other

The Authority has easements and water rights that are considered intangible assets. The water rights
are related to an agreement the Authority has with the City of Newport News to purchase and treat
water to meet long-term water supply needs. These water rights are amortized using the straight-line
depreciation method over the life of the agreement. More information on this agreement can be
found in note 11.
When capital assets are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts and any gain or loss is included in the accompanying statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position.
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(j)

Unbilled Revenue
The Authority records the amount of accrued but unbilled revenue by prorating actual subsequent
billings. Amounts accrued but unbilled were approximately $1,116,180 and $1,076,000 at June 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

(g)

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts
The Authority has few uncollectible receivables and does not use an allowance account. State law
permits filing of liens against real property for unpaid utility charges. The write-off of bad debts only
occurs when the property is sold prior to the lien process being instituted.

(h)

Budgetary Policy
Although a budget is not legally required to be adopted, a fiscal year budget is prepared on a
modified accrual basis for management and fiscal planning purposes. Any changes to the adopted
budget require Board approval. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year with the exception
of capital projects which continue until completed. For the year ended June 30, 2013, there were
$129,800 in supplemental appropriations for an employee bonus and various grants. At June 30,
2012, there were $468,639 in supplemental appropriations for an employee bonus and costs related
to Hurricane Irene.

(i)

Risk Management
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Property, liability and
worker's compensation coverages are provided through a self insurance pool. The Authority's
retention is through deductibles. Deductibles and coverage limits at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Deductibles
Property
Inland marine
Flood
Earthquake
General liability and law enforcement
Automobile:
Liability
Comprehensive
Collision
Crime
Worker's Compensation

$

10,000
l,000
25,000
25,000
100,000
100,000
1,000
1,000
250
None
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Liability
coverage
limits
Property insurance:
Valuation at functional replacement
Flood (outside l 00 year flood plain)
Business interruption/extra expense
Property in transit
Increased cost of construction/ordinance
demolition
Back-up of sewers and drains
Debris removal
Pollutant clean-up and removal
Off premises power failure
Media reproduction
Newly acquired locations for up to I 20 days
General liability and law enforcement
Automobile liability
Public officials
Crime
Workers' compensation

$

45.500.522
45,500.522
3,000,000
5,000,000
20.000,000
1,000.000
20,000,000
500,000
1,000,000
100.000
20,000,000
9,000,000
9,000,000
9.000,000
500,000
Statutory limits

There have been no reductions in insurance coverages from the prior year, and settled claims have
not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
(j)

Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the terms
of the related issues on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method.

(k)

Operating and Nonoperating Revenue and Expenses Recognition
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses result from providing water and sewer services. Revenues and expenses not
meeting the operating definition are reported as nonoperating. These consist mainly of water and
sewer facility charges, investment income, interest expense, and gain (loss) on disposal of capital
assets.

(l)

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities for the reported periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates and
assumptions.
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(m)

New Accounting Principles
Effective with the financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Authority has
adopted GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources and Net Position. This statement amends previous reporting requirements by
incorporating the financial elements of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources in the presentation of financial position. Under the provisions of this statement, net
position, rather than net assets, represents the difference between all other elements on an entity's
statement of financial position, or balance sheet. Accordingly, the Authority's financial statements,
items on the balance sheet are now classified as assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, or net position.

(n)

Subsequent Events
In preparing these financial statements, the Authority has evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through October 24, 2013, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

(2)

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

(a)

Deposits
At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the carrying values of the Authority's deposits with banks and savings
institutions were $666, 123 and $699,024, respectively, and the bank balances were $994,685 and
$799,365, respectively. The differences between the carrying values of bank deposits and the bank
balances are primarily due to outstanding checks and deposits in transit. The bank balances are fully
covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized in accordance
with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the Act), which is considered to be insured.
Under the Act, banks holding public deposits in excess of the amounts insured by FDIC must pledge
collateral in the amount of 50% of the excess deposits to a collateral pool in the name of the State
Treasury Board. Savings and loan institutions are required to collateralize 100% of deposits in excess
of FDIC limits.
If any member financial institution fails, the entire collateral pool becomes available to satisfy claims
of the Authority. If the value of the pool's collateral is inadequate to cover a loss, additional amounts
would be assessed on a pro rata basis to the members (banks) of the pool. Therefore, these deposits
are considered collateralized and as a result, are considered insured.

The State Treasury Board is responsible for monitoring compliance with the collateralization and
reporting requirements of the Act and for notifying local governments of compliance by banks and
savings and loans.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

(b)

Investments
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority had the following investments and maturities:
Fair
value

Less than 1

1-2

2-7

2013:
Money market funds
Certificate of deposit
Corporate notes
Federal agency l:xmds/notes
Municipal txmds
U.S. Treasury notes

$

2.502.981
2,991.339
3.874.762
8.000.844
759.422
13.087.460

2.502.981
8CX)J36

2.073,600

117.403
3.874.762
7.351,965
759.422
13.087,460

648.879

3

Total

Fair
value

Investment maturity (in years)
Lessthanl
1-2

2-7

2012:
Money market funds
Certificate of deposit
Corporate notes
Federal agency bonds/notes
Municipal bonds
U.S. Treasury notes
Total

(c)

$

4.762.385
2,717.237
4.869.452
17.154.970
777,311
7.185.497

4.762.385
800.034

802,776
576.435

1,114.427
4.869.452
16.578.535
777.311
7.185,497

$

Investment Policy
In accordance with the Code of Virginia and other applicable laws, including regulations, the
Authority's Investment Policy (the Policy) permits investments in U.S. government obligations,
municipal obligations, prime quality commercial paper, and certain corporate notes, bankers'
acceptances, repurchase agreements, negotiable certificates of deposit, bank deposit notes, mutual
funds that invest exclusively in securities specifically permitted under the Policy, and the State
Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (the Virginia LGIP, a 2a-7 like pool). The fair value
of the Commission's position in the LGIP is the same as the value of the pool shares. The Treasury
Board of the Commonwealth of Virginia has regulatory oversight of the LGIP. The JCSA Board of
Directors adopted an updated Investment Policy on March 26, 2013.
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(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

The Policy establishes limitations on the holdings of non-U.S. government obligations. The
maximum percentage of the portfolio (book value at the date of acquisition) permitted in each
security is as follows:
Registered money market mutual funds
Commonwealth of Virginia LGIP
Repurchase agreements
Bankers' acceptances
Commercial paper
Negotiable certificates of deposit/bank notes
Municipal obligations
Corporate notes
Bank deposits

50%
50%
50%
35%
35%
20%
20%
20%
35%

maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum

The combined amount of bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, and corporate notes shall not
exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total book value of the portfolio at the date of acquisition.

(d)

Credit Risk
As required by state statute, the Policy requires that commercial paper have a short-term debt rating
of no less than A-1 (or its equivalent) from at least two of the following: Moody's Investors Service,
Standard & Poor's, Fitch Investor's Service, and Duff and Phelps. Corporate notes must have a
minimum of Aa long-term debt rating by Moody's Investors Service and a minimum of AA longterm debt rating by Standard & Poor's. Negotiable certificates of deposit and bank deposit notes
maturing in less than one year must have a short-term debt rating of at least A- I by Standard &
Poor's and P-1 by Moody's Investors Service. Notes having a maturity of greater than one year must
be rated AA by Standard & Poor's and Aaby Moody's Investors Service.
Although state statute does not impose credit standards on repurchase agreement counterparties,
bankers' acceptances, or money market mutual funds, the Authority has established stringent credit
standards for these investments to minimize portfolio risk.
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority's investments were rated by Standard & Poor's and the
ratings are presented on the following page using the Standard & Poor' s rating scale:
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2013:
Certificate of deposit
Corporate notes
Federal agency
honds/notes
Municipal bonds
U.S. Treasury notes
Total

696,618
1.858,924

2,177,318

1.292.596

2,555.542

2.177.318

1.000,052
l.129,078

1,602,810

310,814

2.129,130

1,602.810

$
1,482,664

533.174

8.000,844
759.422
13.087.460
22.570,968

$

2012:
Certificate of deposit
Corporate notes
Federal agency
honds/notes
Municipal bonds
U.S. Treasury notes
Total

$
1,059.246

1,777,749

592,565

17,154,970
777,311
7, 185.497

$

1.059.246

26,118,216

592,565

1,088, 125

Money market funds of $2,502,981 and $4,762,385, respectively for 2013 and 2012, and a portion of
certificate of deposit totaling $117,403 and $114,375 for 2013 and 2012, respectively, are unrated;
therefore, they are not included in the information presented above.

(e)

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Policy establishes guidelines on portfolio composition by issuer in order to control concentration
of credit risk. No more than 5% of the Authority's portfolio will be invested in the securities of any
single issuer with the following exceptions:
U.S. Treasury
Each money market mutual fund
Each federal agency
Each federal agency mortgage-backed security
Each repurchase agreement counterparty
Commonwealth of Virginia LGIP
Bank deposits

100%
50%
35%
10%
25%
50%
35%

maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum
maximum

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the portions of the Authority's portfolio that exceeded 5% of the total
portfolio are presented on the following page:
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Issuer

% of portfolio

U.S. Trea<;ury
Federal National Mortgage A'isociation
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

45.4%

12.0
15.8
% of portfolio

Federal National Mortgage A'isociation
U.S. Treasury
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal Home Loan Bank

(/)

25.3%

22.0
18.0
9.3

Interest Rate Risk
As a means of limiting exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Policy
limits the investment of short-term operating funds to an average weighted maturity of no more than
180 days, with a portion of the portfolio continuously invested in readily available funds. The
operating fund core portfolio will be invested in permitted investments with a stated maturity of no
more than five years from the date of purchase. To control the volatility of the core portfolio, the
Authority will determine a duration target, not to exceed three years.
Proceeds from the sale of bonds must be invested in compliance with the specific requirements of the
bond covenants and may be invested in securities with longer maturities, so long as the maturity does
not exceed the expected disbursement date of those funds.

(g)

Custodial Credit Risk
The Policy requires that all investment securities purchased by the Authority or held as collateral on
deposits or investments shall be held by the Authority or by a third-party custodial agent who may
not otherwise be a counter party to the investment transaction. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, all of
the Authority's investments were held in a bank's trust department in the name of James City
Service Authority.
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(3)

Capital Assets
The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012:
Balance
l, 2012
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Utility plant:
Land
Nonutility property:
Land
Land improvements
Construction in progress
Intangible assets - easements

$

Total capital assets not
being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Utility plant:
Water and sewer systems
Nonutility property:
Central shop
Office fixtures and equipment
Automotive equipment
Intangible assets - water rights
Total other capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization for:
Water and sewer systems
Central shop
Office fixtures and equipment
Automotive equipment
Intangible assets - water rights
Total accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
Other capital assets, net

$

Increases

Decreases

Balance
June 30, 2013

962,695

962.695

1,750,391
13,183
595,777
4,570

1,750,391
13, 183
510.598
4.570

2,109,411

2,194,590

3,326.616

2.109.411

2.194,590

1.437

228.822,869

4.782,177

197,302

233.407. 744

4.817.690
1.482,163
2,373.459
25,000,000

95.169
256.340
126,540

52,550
69.430
88.487

4,860.309
l,669.073
2.411,512
25,000.000

262,496, 181

5,260,226

407,769

267,348,638

92,312,997
I, 105.014
840,994
1,759,613
1.993,865

6.516,069
140,524
159,001
190,340
613.497

38,285
10,510
55,763
88,487

98,790,781
1,235,028
944,232
1.861,466
2,607,362

98,012,483

7,619,431

193.045

105,438.869

164.483.698

(2,359.205)

214.724

161,909,769

167,810.314

(249,794)

2,409.314

165,151,206
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Balance
2011
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Utility plant:
Land
Nonutility property:
Land
Land improvements
Construction in progress
Intangible assets easements

Other capital assets:
Utility plant:
Water and sewer systems
Nonutility property:
Central shop
Office fixtures and equipment
Automotive equipment
Intangible assets - water rights

Decreases

962.695

1.750.391
13.183
6,051.258
4.570

1.499,098

6,954.579

1.750,391
13,183
595.777

8.782.097

1.499,098

6.954.579

3,326.616

221,077,670

7.745.199

2.270.619

2,551.027
411.403
164.510

228.822.869
3.956
97.268
154.942

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization for:
Water and sewer systems
Central shop
Office fixtures and equipment
Automotive equipment
Intangible assets - water rights
Total accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
Other capital assets, net

$

4.817,690
1.482.163
2.373.459

181

251

Total other capital assets

Balance
June 30, 2012

962.695

$

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Increases

85,908,116
981,679
844,280
l.716.240
1,380,368

6,404,881
124,349
93.982
198,315
613,497

1.014
97.268
154,942

92,312,997
1.105.014
840,994
1,759,613
1,993,865

90.830,683

7,435,024

253,224

98.012.483

161,049,525

3,437, l 15

2,942

164,483,698

169,831,622

4.936,213

6,957,521

167.810,314
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(4)

Advances for Construction
Advances for construction consist of two separate agreement types. Funds can be advanced by developers
for the construction of specific facilities. These agreements call for rebates, up to the amount advanced,
and have no expiration date. Developers can also construct a facility, dedicate it to the Authority, and
receive rebates up to the cost of the facility for up to I 0 years. The Authority no longer enters into these
types of agreements. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, advances for construction consisted of:

Funds advanced
Facilities constructed

(5)

$

27,380

$

32,902

Long-Term Debt
A summary of the Authority's long-term debt activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 is
presented as follows:
Amounts
payable at
July 1, 2012
Revenue bonds
Deferred amounts
Add bond premium
Compensated absences
Total

$

32,700,000

Total

Decreases
7,515,000

25,185.000

238,175
387,129

453,022

238,175
432.374

$ 33,325,304

453.022

8,185,549

25,592,777

Decreases

Amounts
payable at
June 30, 2012

Amounts
payable at
July 1, 2011
Revenue bonds
Deferred amounts Add bond premium
Compensated absences

Increases

Amounts
payable at
June 30, 2013

Increases

$ 34,190,000

Amounts
due within
one year
525,000

305.833
830,833

Amounts
due within
one year

1,490,000

32,700,000

1,545,000

279,298
402,587

383,592

41.123
399.050

238,175
387,129

41,124
290,347

$ 34,871,885

383,592

1,930,173

33,325,304

1,876,471

In April 2003, the Authority issued revenue bonds in the amount of $14,650,000 to finance a groundwater
treatment facility, wells, and water transmission lines. In January 2013, the bonds were defeased and the
liability for these bonds has been eliminated. The Authority paid a redemption premium of $59,700 and
the net present value savings was $885,331.
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General long-term obligations at June 30, 2013 are comprised of the following:
$27, 120,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2008, issued August 2008,
maturing in various annual installments through 2040,
with interest payable semiannually at 3.50%

Future maturities of the Authority's debt obligation with scheduled interest payments are as follows:
Princi~al

Fiscal year ending June 30:
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2040

$

Interest

10,710,000

1,119.306
1,100,931
1,081.856
1,062,081
1,041.606
4,823,269
4,044,006
3,165.738
2,563,188
590.888

25,185,000

20,592,869

525.000
545.000
565,000
585,000
605.000
3,405,000
4,185,000
4,060,000

Total costs of issuance for the above bonds were $801,680 and have been capitalized in the accompanying
balance sheets. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $312,149 and $207,780,
respectively. Bond issuance costs are amortized on a straight-line basis (which approximates the effective
interest method) over the life of the related bonds. Amortization expense was $104,369 and $33,994 for the
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(6)

Salaries and Fringe Benefits
Salaries and fringe benefits, such as vacation, sick leave, hospitalization insurance, and pension plan costs
are paid by the County. The costs attributable to Authority personnel are reimbursed to the County by the
Authority. Any costs associated with earned but unused vacation and sick leave are reported in the
financial statements.
At June 30, 2013 and 2012, employees' earned but unused vacation was $323,523 and $308,231,
respectively, and unused sick leave was $84,254 and $78,898, respectively, and are both included in
compensated absences in the accompanying balance sheets. Upon termination, employees are entitled to
receive cash payments for sick leave at 25% of accumulated values up to a maximum of $5,000.
Employees are entitled to sick leave reimbursement only after having been employed by the Authority for
a minimum of two years.
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(7)

Defined-Benefit Pension Plan

(a) Plan Description
All full-time, salaried regular employees of participating employers are automatically covered by
Virginia Retirement System (VRS) upon employment. The VRS plan is a single-employer defined
benefit plan and is administered by the County. Benefits vest after five years of service credit.
Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and their employer is
paying into the VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior public service, active duty military
service, certain periods of leave and previously refunded VRS service as service credit in their plan.
VRS administers two defined benefit plans for local government employees - Plan l and Plan 2:
•

Members hired before July I, 2010 and who were vested as of January 1, 2013 are covered under
Plan I. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit beginning
at age 65 with at least five years of service credit or age 55 with at least 30 years of service credit.
They may retire with a reduced benefit early at age 50 with at least 10 years of service credit.

•

Members hired or rehired on or after July 1, 2010 and Plan 1 members who were not vested on
January I, 2013 are covered under Plan 2. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an
unreduced benefit beginning at their normal Social Security retirement age with at least five years
of service credit or when the sum of their age and service equals 90. They may retire with a
reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years of service credit.

The VRS Basic Benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage
of the member's average final compensation multiplied by the member's total service credit. Under
Plan I, average final compensation is the average of the member's 36 consecutive months of highest
compensation. Under Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the member's 60
consecutive months of highest compensation. The retirement multiplier for Plan 1 members is 1.7%.
The multiplier for Plan 2 members was reduced to l.65% effective January I, 2013. At retirement,
members can elect the Basic Benefit, the Survivor Option, a Partial Lump-Sum Option Payment
(PLOP) or the Advance Pension Option. A retirement reduction factor is applied to the Basic Benefit
amount for members electing the Survivor Option, PLOP or Advance Pension Option or those
retiring with a reduced benefit.
Retirees are eligible for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) effective July 1 of the second
calendar year of retirement. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5%; under Plan 2, the COLA
cannot exceed 6%. During years of no inflation or deflation, the COLA is 0%. The VRS also provides
death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia ( 1950), as amended, assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia.
The system issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of the report may be obtained
from the VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2012-annual-report.pdf or by
writing to the System's Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.
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(b) Funding Policy
Plan members are required by Title 51. l of the Code of Virginia ( 1950), as amended, to contribute
5% of their annual salary to the VRS. Effective July l, 2012, Plan 1 members were required to make
the 5% member contribution. Prior to this date, the Authority assumed this contribution for
employees. Effective July 1, 2011, Plan 2 members were required to make the 5% member
contribution. In addition, the Authority is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to
fund their participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the statute and approved by
the VRS board of trustees. The Plan l employer contribution rates for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012 were 7.83% and 9.99% of annual covered payroll. The Plan 2 employer contribution
rates for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were 7.83% and 4.99% of annual covered
payroll, respectively.

(c) Annual Pension Cost
For fiscal years 2013 and 2012, the Authority's annual pension cost of $506,157 and $382,768,
respectively, was equal to the Authority's required and actual contributions.
The fiscal year 2013 required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2012 actuarial
valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2012
included (a) an investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) of 7%, (b) projected salary
increases ranging from 3.75% to 5.60% per year for general government employees and (c) a cost-ofliving adjustment of 2.50% per year for Plan I members and 2.25% per year for Plan 2 members.
Both the investment rate of return and the projected salary increases include an inflation component
of 2.50%. The actuarial value of the Authority's assets is equal to the modified market value of
assets. This method uses techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market
value of assets over a five-year period. The Authority's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization
period at June 30, 2012 for the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) was 29 years.

The trend information for the Authority's employees is as follows:

Fiscal year ending
June 30, 2013
June 30, 2012
June 30, 2011

Three-year trend information
Annual
Percentage
of APC
pension cost
(APC)
contributed
506,157
$
100%
382,768
379,057
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100
100

Net
pension
obligation
None
None
None
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(d)

Funded Status and Funding Progress
The plan's funded status and funding progress as of the most recent actuarial valuation, June 30,
2012, was as follows:
$
Actuarial value of assets
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio
Covered payroll
$
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

10,146,323
12,443,789
2,297,466
81.54%
3,779,338
60.79%

Immediately following the notes to basic financial statements in the Required Supplementary
Information is a schedule of funding progress for the Authority's defined benefit pension plan, which
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits over time.

(8)

Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)
The Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The Statement establishes standards for reporting the
liability for the Authority's nonpension postemployment benefit, the health care plan for retirees. The
Authority's OPEB plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan and is administered by the County. The
current year Annual Required Contribution was $34,000. No separate actuarial information is available
with regard to the Authority's participation. Detailed disclosures regarding the County's participation and
related actuarial information can be found in the County's annual financial statements.

(a) Plan Provisions
In addition to providing the pension benefits described in note 7, the Authority provides
postemployment health care (OPEB) for qualifying retired employees who are not yet eligible for
Medicare through a single-employer defined benefit plan. The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Authority and can be amended by the
Authority through its personnel manual.

(b) Funding Policy
The Authority does not intend to establish a trust to prefund this liability. The anticipated growth in
the net OPEB obligation is based on contributions to the benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go cost basis.
The data has been projected into the future based on the assumption the current active population
remains constant. Also, the estimated contributions are based on the implicit rate subsidy payments
made during the year by the retirees.

(c)

Plan Description
Currently, covered full-time active employees who retire directly from the Authority and are at least
50 years of age with 15 years of service are eligible to receive postretirement health care benefits.
Each year, retirees participating in the Authority's sponsored plans will be given the opportunity to
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change plans or drop coverage during an open enrollment period. The pre-Medicare retirees have a
choice of three plans: Optima, Healthkeepers and KeyCare. The majority of the participants are in
Healthkeepers. Dental plans are available at the retiree's cost, and therefore, have no GASB 45
liability. There is no coverage for post-Medicare retirees. There were 80 active employee
participants at the time of the actuarial study. Since the retirees contribute towards their health
insurance premiums based on a blended rate, the Authority has an implicit liability.

(d)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2013 was calculated as follows:
Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Actuarial adjustments
Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made
Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation, end of year

Year
ended
June 30,
2013
2012
2011

(e)

Annual
OPEB
cost
$

$

$

Percentage of
annual
OPEB cost
contributed

34,000
32,000
31,560

38.2% $
34.4
14.4

35,000
6,000
(7,000)
34.000
(13,000)
21,000
150,509
171,509

Net
OPEB
obligation
171,509
150,509
129,509

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Valuation Methods
The projected unit credit method was used to calculate all of the expense amounts and the funded
status of the plan. The calculations were performed in accordance with the methodologies set forth
in GASB Statement No. 45. Under these methods, benefits provided by the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the Authority and the plan members) at the time of the actuarial study are
projected and their present value is determined. The present value is divided into equal parts which
are earned over the period from date of hire to the full eligibility date.
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Employees Included in the Calculations
All active employees who are expected to meet the plan's eligibility requirements on or before the
ultimate assumed retirement age are included in the calculations. Retirees, spouses and spouse
survivors who are entitled to a benefit under the provisions of the plan are also included.
Actuarial Assumptions
In the July l, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included calculations based on a discount rate of 4% for the unfunded liability, rate of
inflation of 2.5%, payroll growth of 3% and amortization of the initial unfunded actuarial liability
over a closed 26 year period based on a level percent of payroll method. The actuarial accrned
liability was $343,000. Future increases for medical benefits were assumed to range from 5% to 9%
with the larger increases in the early years and gradually decreasing to 5% thereafter. It should be
noted that actuarial valuations for the OPEB plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. As such, actuarial calculations
reflect a long-term perspective and, therefore, actuarially determined amounts are subject to revision
as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
(j)

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
valuation
Actuarial
date
value of
assets
Jull'. 1%
2012
$
2011
2010

Actuarial
accrued
liability
(AAL)
project
unit credit
343,000
322,000
244,000

Unfunded
actuarial
accrued
liability
(UAAL)
343,000
322,000
244,000
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Funded
ratio

Covered

UAALasa
percentage
of covered

~al'.roll

~al'.roll

$ 4,306,155
4,144,696
4,040,543

8.0%
7.8
6.0
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(9)

Deferred Compensation Plan
The Authority offers its employees a deferred-compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to regular part-time and full-time Authority employees,
of their gross income up to a maximum of $17,500 per year. The deferred
permits them to defer
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or an unforeseeable
emergency.
As required by Internal Revenue Code Section 457, all amounts of compensation deferred under the plan,
all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts,
property, or rights, are held in trust for the participants. The County acts as trustee for the plan with the
choice of investment options being made by the participants.

(10) Transactions with Related Parties
Certain financial management, accounting, and other services are provided to the Authority by the County.
The charges for these services amounted to $845,205 and $868, 108 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively, and are included in the expenses under contractual fees. The Authority also owed the
County $1,078,608 and $1,235,087 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which primarily represents
payroll expenses incurred by the Authority.
In addition, the County leases space in the Authority's administration building under a 25-year
noncancelable operating lease agreement with the County, which expires in March 2014. Rent revenue was
$I 05, 195 and $87,426 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Rent revenue included the
County's share of utilities, insurance, maintenance, housekeeping supplies, and custodial services, all of
which is included in rental income in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net assets.
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( 1 l) Commitments and Contingencies

(a)

Construction in Progress
At June 30, 2013, the Authority had several major projects under construction which are presented in
the accompanying financial statements as construction in progress. Presented below is a list of these
projects, by budget, expenditures to date, balance of contract, and budget balance.

Sewer improvements
Water supply
Water distribution
Water transmission
Water storage
Other

$

$

(b)

Expenditures
to date

Budget

Project

4,408,217
7.135.148
2.242
489.916
685,620
716,386
13,437,529

422,917

Balance of
contract
1,722,838
190,948
2,242
243,306

Budget
balance
2,685,379
6,521,283

87,681

117,901

246,610
685,620
510,804

510,598

2,277,235

10,649,696

Project Development Agreement - Long Term Water Supply
The Authority entered into a project development agreement with the City of Newport News on
March 25, 2008 for long-term water supply. The initial term of this agreement ends on January 1,
2050, at which time this agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional terms of 25 years.
The Authority paid the City of Newport News $25 million on December 31, 2008, which was the
first installment of this agreement. The second payment of $25 million is due by June 30, 2019.
Both installment payments are considered to be for the purchase of an intangible asset (rights to
water supply) and, as such, these costs will be capitalized and amortized over the remaining life of
the agreement (initial term). See note 3 for more information on the intangible asset.
In addition to the installment payments, the Authority agreed to pay variable and fixed operating and
maintenance costs to the City of Newport News payable by September 1 each year, based on its safe
yield share of 20%. For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority paid $3,229 to the
City of Newport News for these costs. Further, the Authority also agreed that if it receives water
from the City of Newport News through this agreement, to pay for the treatment of such water at a
cost of $1.08 per l ,000 gallons. For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority did not
receive water from the City of Newport News under this agreement, and, as such, did not incur or
pay for water treatment these fiscal years.

(c)

Grinder Pump Maintenance
The Authority entered into a contract with Final Phase Installations, Inc. where they will provide
grinder pump maintenance. The initial term of the contract was November 1, 2011 through October
31, 2012, with the option to renew for up to 4 additional years. In September 2012, this contract was
renewed until November I, 2013. Monthly payments are $18,492. For the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012, the Authority paid $221,909 and $147,939, respectively, towards this contract.
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JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

(d)

Water Storage Tank Maintenance
The Authority entered into a contract with Superior Industrial Maintenance Company where they
will provide water storage tank maintenance. The initial term of the contract is July l, 2012 through
June 30, 2013, with a total contract amount of $379,550. The Authority has the option to renew this
contract for up to 4 additional years. The contract has been renewed through May 25, 2014.

(e)

Other
The Authority is not currently involved in any litigation which management feels could have a
significant impact on the Authority's financial condition.

(12) Note Receivable and Deferred Liability
In August 2006, the Authority executed a performance based agreement with the Economic
Development Authority of James City County and Avid Medical to construct a water tower in the
Stonehouse area. The Authority had a $500,000 note receivable from the Economic Development
Authority to offset costs associated with construction of the water tower. This amount was paid by the
Economic Development Authority in 2008. Also, in 2007, Avid Medical was issued a forgiveable loan
from the Authority in the amount of $500,000. This amount will be forgiven contingent upon the
organization maintaining a certain taxable capital investment in James City County. In fiscal years 2013
and 2012, Avid did meet the capital investment and $9,915 and $247,284 was forgiven. The entire
amount of the loan was forgiven as of June 30, 2013.
In September 2009, the Authority executed a promissory note with Anderson-Hughes, LLC pursuant to
the Sewer Modification Contract dated September 20, 2007 for the installation of grinder pumps. The
promissory note was issued for $170,000 at 6% interest. Anderson-Hughes, LLC is required to pay
$2,508 per month until August 2016. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the note receivable balance was
$86,585 and $108,736.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER THAN MD&A (Unaudited)

Exhibit 4
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
Virginia)
(A Component Unit the County of James
Required Supplementary Information Other Than MD&A
Schedule of Funding Progress - VRS
June 30, 2013

Unfunded
actuarial
accrued
liability/
(funding excess)
(UAAL)

UAAL/(excess
funding) as a
percentage
of covered
payroll

Actuarial
value of
asset"l

Actuarial
accrued
liability
(AAL)

10,146,323

12,443,789

2,297,466

81.54%

June 30, 20 l l

9,884,534

11,714,335

1,829,80 l

84.38

3,789,456

June 30, 2010

9,379,772

11,139,934

1,760,162

84.20

3,762,294

46.78

June 30, 2009

9,259,271

9,773,570

514,299

94.74

3,995,122

12.87

June 30, 2008

8,716,528

8,860,331

143,803

98.38

3,762,899

Actuarial
valuation date
June 30, 2012

$

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Covered
payroll

Funded
ratio
$

3,779,338
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule l

JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City. Virginia)

Statements of Net

Position~

by Activity

June 30. 2013
(with comparative totals for 2012)

Assets

Water

Sewer

operations

operations

Current as;.;ets:

42.872
52.160

666.123
28.596.424
2530.817
88.940
86.585
91.217
803.956

699.()24
32.590.092
2.471.587
285.962
118.651
89.863
747.416

13.032.708

J 9,831.354

32.864,062

37,()02,595

118.825.700

962.695
114.582.044

962.695
233.407.744

962.695
228.822,869

118.825.700

115.544.739

234.370.439

229.785.564
1.750.391
4.817.690
1.482.163
13.183
2.373.459

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable. customers
Accounts receivable. other
Note receivable
Interest receivable
rnventorles

306.417
10.646.204
I 120,956
86.585
48.345
751.796

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Utility plant:
Land
Water and sewer systems
Total utility plant
Nonutility property:
Land
Central shop
Office fixtures and equipment
Land improvements
Automotive equipment
Total nonutility property
Intangible assets:
Ea~ements

Water rights
Total intangible assets
Construction in progress

U50.391
4.792.966
1.164.174
13.J 83
J.941.080

470.432

1.750.391
4.860.309
J .669.073
13.183
2.411.512

9.661.794

1.042.674

10.704.468

10.436.886

4.570
25.000.000

4.570
25.000.000

4.570
25.000.000

25.()04.570

25.004.570

25.004.570

510.598

510.598

595.777

I05.438.869

98.012.483

99.796.533

165.151.206

167.810.314

2.620.384

2.620.384

4.876,760

489.531

489.531

593.900

786.477
13.258
305.833
1.078.608
160.764
513.273

252.010
14.927
290.347
1.235.087
133,ll7
680.096
9.915

54.206.129

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Net capital assets
Investments restricted for future use
Bond issuance costs. net

359.706
17.950.220
l..+09.861
16.535

67.343
504.899

51.232.740

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

$

Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable. trade
Accrued salaries
Compensated absences. current portion
Due to James City County
Deposits
Interest payable
Deferred liability
Bonds payable, including unamortized
premium. current portion

$

725.241
10.619
305.833
970.338
160.764
513.273

61.236
2.639
108.270

525.000

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances for construction
OPEB liability
Compensated absences, net of current portion
Bonds payable. including unamortized
premium. net of current portion

525.000

1,586.124

3.21 l.068

172,145

3.383.213

4.201.623

5.882
92.615
101.944

27.020
78.894

32.902
171.509
101.944

32.902
150.509
96,782

24,660.000

31.352,051

Total noncurrent liabilities

24.860.441

105.914

24.966.355

31.632.244

Total liabilities

28.071.509

278.059

28.349.568

35.833.867

74.611.533
2.620.384
10.635.730

65.354.673

139.966.206
2,620.384
30.189.025

134,872.139
4,876.760
34.700.803

87.867.647

84.907.968

172.775,615

174.449,702

1l5.939.156

85.186.027

201.125.183

210.283.569

24,660.000

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

$

19.553.295

See accompanying independent auditors· report.
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Schedule 2
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses. and Changes in Net Position - by Activity
Year ended June 30. 2013
(with comparative totals for year ended June 30. 2012)

Operating revenues:
Water and sewer services
Reimbursement for storm costs
Other

$

Water
operations

Sewer
operations

6.229.168

5.773,365

12,002,533

11.718.297
349.541

1.953.695
769.349
592.741
1.425,482
607,785
465.481

2.352.460
866,689
230,141
1,939.428
254.880
445,010

4.306.155
1.636.038
822.882
3.364,910
862,665
910.491

4.144.696
l.584,707
899.()95
3.065,512
917.498
882.505
359,921
560.671

15.084

22.606

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Operating supplies
Maintenance of buildings and equipment
Utilities
Contractual fees
Storm costs
Other

260.899

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss) before
depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization
Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Facility charges
Investment income (loss)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Interest net

6,349.507

537.571

(522.487)

4.930.219

2,793.581

7,723,800

7.469.016

(4.392.648)

(3.316,068)

(7,708,716)

(7.446.410)

2.220,704

1,647,950
108.459
(51.449)

3,868.654
(1.249,l 1l)
(44.507)
(l, l 4 l.052)

3,165.330
351,929
21.285
( l,478.060)

(270.976)

1.704.960

1.433.984

2,060.484

(4,663,624)

(l,611,108)

(6,274,732)

(5,385,926)

2,815.996

1.784,649

4,600,645

5,395,362

( 1,847,628)

173,541

( l.6 74,087)

9,436

89,715.275

84.734,427

174.449,702

174.440.266

87,867,647

84,907,968

172.775.615

174.449.702

(l ,357.570)

6.942
(I, 141,052)

Net nonoperating revenues
Loss before
capital contributions
Capital asset contributions
Changes in net position
Net position at beginning of year
Net position at end of year

6.058.207

$

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Schedule 3
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James
Schedule of Operating Revenues and Expenses - Budget and Actual

by

Year ended June 30, 2013

Variance
favorable
(unfavorable)

Water operations
Actual
Budget
Operating revenues:
Water and sewer services
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Operating supplies
Maintenance of buildings and equipment
Utilities
Contractual fees
Other
Total operating expenses

Sewer operations
Actual
Budget

$

6,229,168
366,610

6,721,306
368,621

(492, 138)
(2,011)

5,773,365
53,655

$

6,595,778

7,089,927

(494,149)

5.827,020

$

1,953,695
769,349
592,741
1,425,482
607,785
465,481
243,674

2,062,615
804,738
620,559
1,602,028
608,227
536,949
458,879

108,920
35,389
27,818
176,546
442
71,468
215,205

2,352,460
866.689
230,141
1,939,428
254,880
445,0!0
260,899

6,058,207

6,693,995

635,788

6,349.507

*

$

6,31
30,000
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).,n,H·tnwnt

of Environmental

8)
23,655

(51

244.278
2,181,114
276,703
567,599
187

I
105.288

629.866

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

* Includes budget from Capital Improvements Program for maintenance expenses related to the

Variance
favorable
(unfavorable)

consent order.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)

Statistical Section Overview

This part of the James City Service Authority's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and
required supplementary information says about the Authority's overall financial health.
Contents
Tables 1-2

Financial Trends

These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Authority's financial
performance and well-being has changed over time.
Revenue Capacity

Tables 3-4

These tables contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the Authority's ability to
generate its operating revenues.
Debt Capacity

Tables 5-7

These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Authority's current
level of outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic & Economic Information

Tables 8-9

These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the Authority's financial activities take place.
Operation Information

Tables 10-16

These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in
the Authority's financial report relates to the services the Authority provides and the activities it
performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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Table l

.JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City,

Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2004
Net Position
Net investment in
capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted

$

Total net position

$

104,781,826
3,155,428

112,013,177
696,483

! 24,654,60 I
703,494

132,145,149
709,584

134Jl6,001
705,775

42

134,314,330
4,674,837

2010

2011

135,071,435
4,610,218

135,641,623
4,740,769

2012

2013

Table2
,JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Operating revenues:
Water and sewer services
Rental income
Water supply proffers
Reimbursements for storm costs
Other

$

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

8,027,991

8,383,600
195,981
634,885

10,269,798
217,172
403,459

11.464.460
187,753
530,518
161,573
l,029,399

11,211,578
181,256
502,217

12.279,796
135,234
138,l 70

12,314,268
144.441
52,908

2011

144,381
26,967
349,541
198,025

431,550

8,842,083

9,646,016

11,199,858

l 3,373,703

12,510,934

2,923,145
875,947
323,813

3, 187,930
1,009,184
533,095

3,468,415
1,157,005
625,773

3,798.002
1,496,723
789,553

4,066,458
l,529, J73
775,892

4,360,920
l,612, 176
1,014,351

4,133,261
1,570,514
866,624

4,040,543
l,585,037
888,559

1,153,665
467,809
508,513
209,444
666,286

1,235,196
621,956
530,321

982,237
692,084
543,365

1,715,131
893,503
640,618

1,687,340
J,008,602
735,132

1,969,l 16
771,544
889,869

3,193,116
813.478
873,l lO

625,683

1,148,217
739,235
626.437
161,349
660,802

Total operating expenses

7,128,622

7,743,365

9.420,318

10,205,599

Operating income before depreciation
and amortization

1,713,461

l,902,651

3,953,385

2,305,335

1,841,247

L976,4l l

999.406

2,507,300
3,658,420

3,260,875
956,056

509,675

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Operating supplies
Maintenance of buildings
and equipment
Utilities
Contractual fees
Storm costs
Other

Depreciation and amortization
Operating loss

2,916,147

615,883

241

12.437,21 l

4,119,963

4,547,931

5,330,865

(2,645,280)

(2,414,718)

(l ,640,768)

(3,559,585)

5,864,920

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Facility charges
Investment income (loss)
Gain (loss) on disposal of
capital assets
Interest expense, net
Net nonoperating revenues

4,914,512
184,213

6,130,640
506,939

6, 132,383
935,97 l

5,904,875
1,503,939

3,428,121
1,995,201

1,869
(482,695)
4,617,899

24,124
(513,617)
6,148,086

(39,930)
(494,712)
6,533,712

(2, 198,500)
(475,557)
4,734,757

181,615
(480,584)
5,124,353

74,226

Income before contributions

2,21 J ,397

3,502,806

4,J 18,994

3,093,989

1,564,768

292,016

Capital asset conu·ilmtions

5,233,761

4,983,390

I0,077,376

7,445,158

8,486, 196

14,196,370

Changes in net position

$

4.144,696
l,584,707

584.824

(2,406,502)

11,020,445

43

4,718,926

4,855,041

3,165,330
351
21,285

(2,895 ,491)
3,427,5 JO

3,154,158

532,019

2013

l

371,538
442,554

Total operating revenues

2012

(3,422,081)

(5,385,926)

l

Table 3
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Water and Sewer Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Historical Summary of Quarterly Continuing
Service Charges for Residential Water Service
Fiscal
Year

Basic
Charge

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

Rate per
1,000 gallons (1)
$

2.30
2.30
2.30.
2.50 .
2.502.85.
2.85 .
2.85 .
2.85 .
2.85

2.60
2.71
2.71
3.00 .
3.00
3.45
3.45 .
3.45 .
3.45 .
3.45.

7.45
7.60
7.60
8.50
8.50
9.80
9.80
9.80
9.80
9.80

Quarterly
Total
50.10
50.10
50.76
55.50
55.50
63.45
63.45
63.45
63.45
63.45

Percentage
Change

1.3
9.3

14.3

Historical Sununary of Quarterly Continuing
Service Charges for Residential Sewer Service (1)
Fiscal
Year

Basic
Charge

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

Rate per
l,000 gallons
$

Quarterly
Total (2)

2.50
2.70
2.70
2.80
2.80
2.80
2.80
2.80
2.80
3.22

52.50
56.70
56.70
58.80
58.80
58.80
58.80
58.80
58.80
67.62

Percentage
Change
8.7
8.0
3.7

15.0

Source: James City Service Authority Schedule of Rates and Fees
(I) Inverted Block Rate Structure:

lst Block based on 0 to 15,000 gallons used per quarter.
2nd Block based on 15.000 to 25,000 gallons used per quarter, which changed to 15,000 to 30,000
gallons used per quarter commencing in fiscal year 2005.
3rd Block based on over 25,000 gallons used per quarter, which changed to 30,000 gallons used
per quarter commencing in fiscal year 2005.
(2) Assumes 21,000 gallons average quarterly use.
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Table 4
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City,
Listing of Largest Utility Customers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago
2004

2013
Gallons
Billed
Owens-Brockway *
Country Village (sewer only)
Eastern State Hospital *
Grey stone
Patriots Colony
Williamsburg-James City County
Public Schools
Windy Hill Trailer (sewer only)
Platinum Management
Rolling Meadows
Oxford-James
Total

18,863,750
16,780,632
16,062,500
15,780,500
15,272,960
13,546,450
11,874,500
11,018,500
8,585,090
8,033,800
135,818,682

Service
Charges

$

$

Rank

Gallons
Billed

Service
Charges

125,821
54,034
107,137
105,256
101,871

1
2
3
4
5

**
**
**
**
**

**
**
**
**
**

87,145
38,236
73,493
57,263
53,585
803,841

6
7
8
9
IO

**
**
**
**
**

**
**
**
**
**

* Subject to wastewater sub-meter adjustments.
**Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical
was adopted by the Authority as of July 1, 2005. Hence, the information for fiscal year 2004 is not

Source: James City Service Authority, Administration Department
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Rank

Table 5

JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Ratio of Outstanding Debt
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

Revenue
bonds
$

Number of
connections

14,782,165
13,961,041
13,034,918
12,133,794
11,212,670
37,386,546
35,950,422
34,469,299
32,938,175
25,185,000

15,657
16,531
17,552
18,283
18,770
19.085
19.368
19,719
20,070
20,549

Debt per
connection
944.1
844.5
742.6
663.7
597.4
1.958.9
l,856.2
1,748.0
1,641.2
1,225.6

Legal Debt Margin: The James City Service Authority has no legal debt margin nor overlapping debt.
Source: James City Service Authority, Administration Department
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Table 6
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City,
Revenue Bond Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
year
2004 $
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

Gross
revenue

Direct
operating
expenses

Net revenue
available
for debt
service

13,942,677
16,307,719
18,268,212
20,782,517
18,115,871
19,034,715
17,178,575
17,474,579
15,975,755
14,997,834

7,128,622
7,743,365
8,283,711
9,420,318
10,205,599
10,953,522
10,985,233
12,091,472
12,414,605
12,424,220

6,814,055
8,564,354
9,984,50 l
11,362, 199
7,910,272
8,08 l,l 93
6,193,342
5,383,107
3,561,150
2,573,614

Principal
825,000
840,000
860,000
880,000
905,000
1,395,000
1,440,000
1,490,000
l,545,000
525,000

Interest
482,695
541,881
522,981
503,631
479,431
1,637,050
1,590,562
1,537,750
1,483,100
l,119,306

Legal Debt Margin: The James City Service Authority has no legal debt margin nor overlapping debt.
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Total
1,307,695
l ,381,881
1,382,981
l ,383,631
1,384,431
3,032,050
3,030,562
3,028,100
1,644,306

Col'erage
5.21
7.22
8.21
5.71
2.67
2.04
l.78
l.18
l.57

Table 7
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City,
Outstanding Debt for James City
Last Ten Fiscal Years

.Fiscal
year
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

$

General
obligation
bonds

Capital
leases

Lease
revenue
bonds

73,636,054
109,814,071
I06,062,319
126,590,560
118,369,735
109,974, 105
l 01,414,765
93,283,624
86,134,103
77,948,002

14,500,000
13,816,000
13,908,307
13,038,190
12,126,298
11, 170,533
10,169,895
10,285,522
9,235,074
1,098,854

22,570,000
112,780,000
107,200,000
101,595,000
110,275,000
104,055 ,000
104,472,000
123,034,000

Other
debt
-
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Total

586,850
432,900
278,950
125,000
-

-

88,722,904
124,062,971
142,819,576
252,533,750
237,696,033
222,739,638
221,859,660
207 ,624, 146
199,841, 177
202,080,856

Table 8

JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
County Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Calendar
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
(I)

(2)
**

Population (l)
53,952
56,463
58,893
60,867
61, 195
63.l 35
67.745
68,500
69,451
69,945

Personal
income (2)

$ 2,793,123,000
2.952,937,000
3,289,020,000
3,641,841,000
3,985,612,000
3,840,912,000
4,037,513,000
4,316,358,000

**
**

Per capita
personal
income (2)

Unemployment
percentage (1)

40,974
41,692
44,480
47,825
51,274
48,129
49,563
52,228

**
**

Planning Division, supplemented by data from Virginia Employment Commission
(http://www. vec. virginia.gov/)
Data from the Bureau of Economic Analysis (http://www.bea.gov/), and has combined data for
James City County and the City of Williamsburg
Statistics not yet available
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3.2%
3.1
2.6
2.5
3.2
5.5
5.5
5.3
5.1

**

Table 9

JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City,
Principal

in James

Current Year and Nine Years
2004 (2)

2013

Employees
Employment:
Principal Public/Private Employers:
Busch Gardens (I)
Williamsburg-James City County
Public Schools
Eastern State Hospital
James City County
Wal-Mart Distribution Center
Anheuser-Busch, Inc.
Avid Medical
Kingsmill Resort and Spa
Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation
Williamsburg Landing
Williamsburg Plantation, Inc.
Total

**
1,750
875
707
612
575
502
434
421
332

Rank

I

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

**

Percentage of
total County
employment

Employees

**

l,000+

6.82%
2.57
2.08
1.80
l.69
1.47
1.27
1.24
0.97

**

6,208

1,000+
1,000+
500-999
250-499
500-999

**
**
250-499
250-499
250-499

Rank

**

**
**
**
**

19.91%

Source: Economic Development, James City County and Virginia Employment Commission
(1) Busch Gardens became publicly traded during fiscal year 2013, and information is not available.
(2) Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical
was adopted by the County as of July 1, 2005. Hence, some information for fiscal year 2004 is not available.

50

Percentage of
tota] County
employment

**

Table lO
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City,
Schedule of Insurance in Force
June 30, 2013

Insurer
Virginia Association of Counties
Group Self-Insurance Risk Pool (V ACoRP)

Virginia Association of Counties
Group Self-Insurance Association (V ACoGSIA)

Type of'
coverage

Policy
number

General
Property
Automobile
Crime
Public officials' liability

VA-JA-131-10

Workers' compensation

VA-JA-1310-10
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Annual
Premium

Policy period
from

to

l/12

07/0 Ill 3

07/01/12

07/01/13

$

15

Table 11
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City,
Full-time

.

.

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function
Administration
Water
Sewer

Total

2004

57

2005
2006
2007
- - -

11
10

58
13
10

78

81

61
13

62
14

11

11

2008

2009
-

2010

2011

2012

2013

63
14

65
15

65
15

60
15

63
15

63
15

-11- -I I- -l I- -11- -11- -1191
91
86
89
89
-85- -87- 88
-- -- -- --

Source: James City County, Fiscal Year Adopted Budgets
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Table 12
.JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Operating Indicators bv Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function
Water:
New connections
Water main breaks
Sewer:
New connections

2012

2004

2005

-2006
-

2007

2008

2009

2010

20ll

909
62

1,068
59

880
51

694
42

351
57

263
37

385
40

388
44

31

770

770

884

693

389

269

380

375

296

Source: James City Service Authority, Administration Department
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I

2013
448

Table 13
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James
Asset Statistics bv Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function
Water:
Water lines (miles)
Water customers
Storage tanks (greater than
250,000 gallons)
Average ERCs (1)
Sewer:
Sewer lines (miles)
Gallons collected (millions)
Sewer customers

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

294
15,657

305
16,531

319
17,552

329
18.283

332
18,770

339
19,085

344
19,368

393
19,719

390
20,070

393

6
16,800

6
18,800

6
19,200

6
19,600

7
20,400

7

7
20,200

7

7

7

346
1,471
16,605

352
1,469
17,357

360
1,606
17,982

370
1,680
18,426

375
1,727
18,590

379
1,765
18,702

382
1
18,860

419
1
2U27

423
L771
21,488

Source: James City Service Authority, Administration Department
(1) Equivalent Residential Connections (ER Cs) are determined based upon the rated capacity of a water meter (e.g., the average

amount of water which can flow through such meter on a continuous basis) as com oared to the rated caoacitv for a tvoical 5/8"
residential water meter.
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2013

425
l
21

Table 1.t
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James
of Historical Flows
Last Ten Fiscal Ycars

Function
Water:
Average Day
Average Day in Month
of Maximum Flow
Month of Maximum Flow
Sewer:
Average Day

2004

4.2

2005

2006

4.7

4.8

2007
--

2008

4.9

4.9

5.2

6.0

6.4

6.5

May

July

August

June

6.3
Julv

4.0

4.0

4.4

4.6

4.7

Source: James City Service Authority, Administration Department
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2009

4.8
7.1
August

5.4

2010

2011

2012

2013

5.0

5.1

4.8

4.7

6.8

7.4

6.4

6.1

4.4

5.0

5.0

June

4.5

Table 15
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)

Miscellaneous Statistics

Comparison of Area Water Bills
Annual Consumption 80,000 Gallons as of June 2013
(Source: James City Service Authority)
Virginia
Jurisdiction

Water
Service

City of Williamsburg
City of Norfolk
City of Newport News
City of Virginia Beach
James City Service Authority

$

364.00
523.40
447.54
441.72
240.00

Comparison of Area Sewer Bills
Annual Consumption 80,000 Gallons as of June 2013
(Source: James City Service Authority)
Virginia
Jurisdiction

Sewer
Service*

City of Hampton
City of Newport News
City of Virginia Beach
City of Norfolk
York County
James City Service Authority

$

228.88
298.39
298.32
362.56
252.00
257.60

*Rates charged by the municipality. Residents of these municipalities pay a separate
wastewater treatment fee to Hampton Roads Sanitation District of $3.05 per 100 cubic feet.

56

(Continued)

Table 15
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Miscellaneous Statistics

Historical Summary of Availability Charges
for a Typical Residential Connection (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Source: James City Service Authority)
Fiscal
Year
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

Water
$

Sewer

2,400
2,400
2,400
2,400
4,200
4,200
4,200
4,200
4,200
4,200

2,400
2,400
2,400
2,400
2,520
3,360
3,360
3,360
3,360
3,360

Total
4,800
4,800
4,800
4,800
6,720
7,560
7,560
7,560
7,560
7,560

(l) A system facilities charge for water service is assessed for each new separate service

connection. The purpose of the charge is to defray in part the cost of providing major supply,
transmission main, booster pumping and distribution facilities. A similar system facilities
charge for sewer service is assessed for each new separate service connection. The current
charge for a residential 5/8 inch meter is $500 per bathroom fixture and has been in effect
since 2008. The sewer service connection is also based on the size of the water meter and is
$400 per bathroom fixture and has been in effect since 2009.
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Table 16

JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Rates and Fees
June 30, 2013

The following are the rates and fees of James City Service Authority:

(1)

Wastewater Charges

(a)

System Facilities Charge
A system facilities charge for wastewater collection service to be furnished through each new
separate service connection which is to be made to a public sewer, regardless of who may have paid
for the installation of the public sewer to which the connection is to be made, shall be paid by each
applicant for service prior to the installation of service, as follows:

Metered Water Service
Commercial, industrial, institutional, multi-family residential, and single-family residential:

Meter size (inches)

Charge

5/8 Residential
5/8 Nonresidential
314
1

$

1 1/2

2
3
4

5

400 per bathroom fixture
2,500
3,500
4,000
7,500
12,000
24,000
37,500
75,000

Nonmetered Water Service
Where water is provided by an unmetered source, the following estimated charges shall be assessed:

Activity, use

Unit
Each
Each
Each lot
Each
Student
Student
Room

Single-family residences
Single-family mobile homes
Mobile homes in parks
Two family, apartments and townhouses
Schools (with showers)
Schools (without showers)
Motels and hotels
minimum
Manufacturing
minimum
Warehouses
minimum
Service stations

Msf
Msf
Each
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Charge
$

300 per bathroom fixture
1,000
1,000
300 per bathroom fixture
80
50
650
2,500
300
1,200
100
1,200
1,200

(Continued)

Table 16

JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Rates and Fees
June 30, 2013

Activity, use

Charge

Unit

Camping facilities
minimum
Restaurants
minimum
Commercial
minimum
First
Next
Next
Over

Each space
Seat

$

500
1,200
20
1,200

Msf

30,000 sq.
I0,000 sq.
10,000 sq.
50,000 sq.

ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.

1,500
500
450
400
350

The purpose of this charge is to defray, in part, the cost of providing force mains, pump stations,
transmission mains, booster pumps, and other system facilities.

(b)

Local Facilities Charge
A local facilities charge of $1,050 for each separate connection to public sewer shall be paid by each
applicant who desires to secure wastewater service therefrom, which charge shall be paid prior to the
approval of the application for service; provided, however, in any instance where satisfactory
evidence shows that an applicant has paid the cost of installation of the local facility to which the
connection is to be made, either by installing the local facility at his expense and then conveying the
same to the Authority (or its predecessors) or by reimbursing the Authority (or its predecessors) for
the cost of such local facilities, the local facilities charge shall be waived. Additionally, when the
Authority does not install or have a rebate agreement, the local facilities charge shall also be waived.
In situations where a new wastewater system has been installed by the Authority and whereas any
applicant adjacent to this new system that has an existing septic system desires to receive wastewater
service therefrom, the local facilities charge shall be waived for a period of 12 months from the
completion date of the new wastewater system installation.
The purpose of this charge is to defray in part the cost of installing collection mains which are
necessary to provide wastewater collection service to abutting properties and which have been
provided at the expense of the Authority or persons, firms, or corporations other than the applicant.
The charge shall be paid prior to issuance of a plumbing permit from Code Compliance.

(c)

Grinder Pump Installation and Maintenance Charge
Any applicant for a sewer connection requiring a residential grinder pump may purchase the grinder
pump (that meets Authority standards and specifications) plus ancillary parts from the Authority at
cost if the grinder pump is necessary to replace an existing septic system. In addition, if the
connection to the public sewer system is replacing a septic system, the applicant is eligible for the
deferred-payment plan discussed in Paragraph G, Section 2 of the James City Service Authority
Regulations Governing Utility Service.
An annual grinder pump maintenance charge of $260 shall be paid for each separate connection to a
grinder pump when the operation and maintenance of said residential grinder pump is the
responsibility of the Authority. The payment for this charge will be prorated in equal amounts in the
customers' utility service charge billing. The Authority shall not maintain nonresidential grinder
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Table 16
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Rates and Fees
June 30, 2013

pumps or other commercial pump stations unless such utility maintenance is deemed by the
Authority to be in the interest of the public health or is necessary to protect the integrity of the
system, or such facility is located within a designated Reservoir Protection Zone.

(d)

Service Connection Charge
A service connection charge shall be paid by each applicant for each new service connection prior to
the approval of the application as follows:
Service installed by

Charge
$I 0 per connection inspection fee
Actual cost times l .25, including overhead

Developer, applicant
Utility

The purpose of this charge is to defray the cost of installation or inspection of a service connection
from the public sewer main in the street to the curb or property line.
The service connection charge shall be waived provided the applicant has paid a local facilities
charge and the sewer service line is not greater than six inches in diameter for a gravity main or two
inches in diameter for a force main. In the event that the service connection charge is not waived, the
local facilities charge will be applied against the service connection charge.

(e)

Retail Service Rates
The wastewater service charge shall be based on usage from a metered water source where available.
For wastewater service on an unmetered water source, a meter sized equivalent shall be used, based
upon an estimated charge.
1Uetered Water Source

Metered water usage shall be reduced by a metered reading from a landscaping meter or similar
device if the landscaping meter or device is approved and utilized under operating regulations
adopted by Hampton Roads Sanitation District (HRSD).
A copy of the deduction meter reading provided to HRSD must be received by the Authority within
20 days prior to the end of each billing period. In the event a meter reading is not received within this
time, the Authority shall bill based on total water consumption and no refund or billing adjustment
shall be made.
Charge for all collection and treatment of wastewater:
Collection

Volume
Per 1,000 gallons of water consumed
Per l 00 cubic feet of water consumed

$
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3.22
2.41
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Table 16
JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)

Rates and Fees
June 30, 2013

Nonmetered Water Source

Where no meter exists or where meter readings are not made available by the water supplier to the
Authority, the estimated charges on the following page shall be assessed.
use

Unit

Single-family residences
Single-family mobile homes
Mobile homes in parks
Duplex, apartments and townhouses
Schools (with showers)
Schools (without showers)
Motels and hotels
minimum
Manufacturing
minimum
Warehouses
minimum
Service stations
Camping facilities
minimum
Restaurants
minimum
Commercial
minimum
Churches
Swimming pools
Laundromats
Others to be established when needed

Each
Each
Each lot
Each
Student
Student
Room
Msf
Msf
Each
Each space
Seat
Msf
1,000 sf
Each
Sfe
Sfe

Charge

42.00
42.00
37.25
37.25
4.25
2.65
18.55
186.70
11.00
35.85
7.45
46.50
49.95
16.22
64.25
4.95
55.85
18.55
55.85
40.65
40.65
40.65

The purpose of the retail service charge is to defray all other costs of providing wastewater
collection, and in certain cases, treatment for domestic, commercial, and industrial uses including
replacement, renewals, extensions, and repayment of moneys borrowed to acquire or construct the
wastewater collection transmission system.
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JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Rates and Fees
June 30, 2013

(2)

Water Charges

(a)

System Facilities Charge
A system facilities charge for water service to be furnished through each new separate service
connection which is to be made to a public water main, regardless of who may have paid for the
installation of the public water main to which the connection is to be made, shall be paid by each
applicant for service prior to the installation of the water service connection, listed on the following
page:
Commercial, industrial, institutional, multifamily, and single-family residential:

Meter size (inches)
5/8 Residential
5/8 Nonresidential
314
I
1 1/2
2
3
4
6

Charge
$

500 per bathroom fixture
2,500
3,500
4,000
7,500
12,000
24,000
37,500
75,000

The purpose of this charge is to defray in part the cost of providing major supply, transmission main,
booster pumping, and distribution storage facilities. The charge shall be paid prior to the issuance of
a plumbing permit from Code Compliance.

(b)

Local Facilities Charge
A local facilities charge of $1300 for each separate connection to an existing water main shall be
paid by each applicant who desires to secure water service therefrom, which charge shall be paid
prior to the approval of the application for service; provided, however, in any instance where
satisfactory evidence shows that an applicant for a connection has paid the cost of installation of the
local facility to which the connection is to be made, whether by installing the local facility at his
expense and then conveying the same to the Authority (or its predecessors) or by reimbursing the
Authority (or its predecessors) for the cost of such local facility, the local facilities charge shall be
waived.
The purpose of this charge is to defray, in part, the cost of installing mains, valves, and fire hydrants
which are necessary to provide water service to abutting properties and which have been provided at
the expense of the Authority or persons, firms, or corporations other than the applicant. The charge
shall be paid prior to the issuance of a plumbing permit from Code Compliance.
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JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Rates and
June 30, 2013

(c)

Service Connection Charge
A service connection charge shall be paid by each applicant for each new service connection and
meter installation prior to the approval of the application, as follows:

Installation of connection bv

Charge

Developer
Utility

$10 per meter inspection fee
Actual cost times 1.25, including overhead

The purpose of this charge is to defray the cost of installation or inspection of a service connection
from the water main in the street to the curb or property line and the installation of a meter either at
the curb or property line or within the premise.

(d)

Retail Service Charge
Water service shall be based upon a commodity charge for all consumption, as follows:

Residential
Volume

Charge

First Block

Less than 15,000 gallons per quarter

$2.85 per 1,000 gallons
($2.13 per 100 cubic feet)

Second Block

More than 15,000 gallons but less than
30,000 gallons per quarter

$3 .45 per 1,000 gallons
($2.58 per 100 cubic feet)

Third Block

More than 30,000 gallons per quarter

$9.80 per 1,000 gallons
($7.33 per 100 cubic feet)

Nonresidential
Volume
Per 1,000 gallons
Per l 00 cubic feet

Charge
$3.45
$2.58

The purpose of the retail service charge is to defray all costs of providing water service for domestic,
commercial, and industrial uses and for firefighting purposes, including repayment of moneys
borrowed to acquire or construct the water system; operation and maintenance; and renewals,
replacements and extensions.

(3)

Exceptions to Local System Facilities Charges
The provisions of Regulations Governing Utility Service, Section 29 above, shall be observed when there
is a conflict between Section 29 and the provisions of Sections 32(b) and 32(c) above.
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JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Rates and Fees
June 30. 2013

(4)

Billing and Account Charges
The charges on the following pages shall be assessed for any customer billed by the Authority.

(a)

Account Charges
An aecount charge of$ I0 ($20 if the meter is read) shall be paid for each applicant for continuing
service, whether for a new account or for a transfer of account, for water and/or wastewater service.
The purpose of this charge is to defray the cost incurred in clerical and bookkeeping activities, the
turning on of services, and/or meter reading required for each new account or transfer of account.

(b)

Transaction Charge for Late Payment
A transaction charge for late payment of 1.5% will be assessed on the balance due once the bill is
delinquent and then every 30 days thereafter. The late charge will be added to a bill in the event the
bill is not paid within 30 days following the date thereof.

(c)

Interest Charge for Late Payments with a Lien
An interest charge for late payment of 8% simple interest on the principal (delinquent amount) due,
shall be added to any account when a lien has been placed upon real estate. Such lien on any real
estate may be discharged by the payment to the Authority of the total lien amount, penalty, and the
interest which has accrued to the date of the payment.

(d)

Restoration of Service Charge
Where service has been terminated on account of the nonpayment of any bill, a restoration of service
charge of $30 ($100 for a single service wastewater customer not on metered water service) shall be
paid before service is restored, except as defined in Section l 7(A)(2).
The purpose of this charge is to defray the expenses of terminating and restoring services, including
clerical and bookkeeping activities.

(e)

Meter Test Deposit
A test of a water meter shall be done at the request of a water customer upon payment of a meter test
deposit as defined in Regulations Governing Utility Service Section I ( l ). If the meter is found to be
3% or more fast, then the deposit shall be refunded. If inoperable or 25% or more slow, the deposit
shall be credited against a revised billing. The deposit shall be determined by meter size, as set out in
the following:

Meter size
5/8" to 2"
3" and over

Deposit

$
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JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Rates and
June 30, 2013

(j)

Fire Hydrant Charge
For customer-requested hydrants installed under the provisions of Regulations Governing Utility
Service Section 21, there shall be an installation cost of actual cost plus an allowance of 25% for
overhead. The applicant shall deposit with the Authority an estimated fee prepared by the Authority,
subsequently adjusted at the completion of the installation with costs exceeding the estimate billed
or, in case the estimate exceeds the cost, refunded to the applicant.
The purpose of this charge is to assess to the user the cost of installing fire hydrants for the benefit of
the applicant.

(g)

Temporary Water Service Charge
Under the provisions of Section 22, an applicant for temporary service shall pay, upon application,
for the estimated costs of installing, replacing, and removing the facilities which are required to
furnish such services plus an allowance of 25% for overhead. The applicant shall receive a refund if
the estimate exceeds the actual. The applicant shall also pay service charges and all charges caused
by a late payment or nonpayment. The applicant may also be required to post a deposit as described
in Regulations Governing Utility Service Section 6.

(h)

Fire Connection Detector Check Meter Charge
Fire connection detector check meters shall be read and billed at least annually or on a more frequent
basis, as determined by the Authority. Rates governing normal water usage shall be assessed.
Fire connection detector check meters monitor nonfire flow usage from a fire connection and there
should be little or no water activity.

(5)

Multiple Charges Bills
All charges and fees above are in addition to charges and fees assessed and owed to Newport News
Waterworks, HRSD, or any other private or municipal utility.

(6)

No Free Service
There shall be no utility service provided to any customer without the assessment of service charges.

(7)

Plan Review Fee
The following page indicates the charges that shall be assessed for the appropriate plan. The purpose of
this charge is to defray cost incurred for time used to provide engineer technical review.
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JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)

Rates and Fees
June 30, 2013

Document
Rezonings:
5 acres of less
Greater than 5, but less than I 0 acres
Greater than I 0 acres
Special use permits:
General
Family subdivision
Wireless communication facilities
Other
Site plans:
Administrative review:
Residential structure (multifamily)
Nonresidential structure
Mixed use structure
Utility easement plat service
Planning commission review:
Residential structure (multifamily)
Nonresidential structure
Mixed use structure
Utility easement plat service
Amendment to an approved plan:
Residential structure (multifamily)
Nonresidential structure
Mixed use structure
Utility easement plat service
Each additional review after
second resubmission
Master plan review:
Initial review
Revision of plan
Conceptual plan for water and sewer:
General
Master utility plans and modeling
Each additional review after
second resubmission
Subdivision plan review:
No public improvements required
Public improvements required
Wastewater pumping station
Well facility
Each additional review after
second resubmission

Collection
$ 100

150
200
200
50
50
50

300 plus $5 per unit
300
200 plus $5 per residential unit
300
300 plus $5 per unit
300
300 plus $5 per residential unit
300
150 plus $2 per unit
150
150 plus $2 per residential unit
150
150
600
600

100
300
150
75
300 per plan plus $5 per lot
2,000
3,000

150
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(A Component Unit of the County of James City, Virginia)
Rates and Fees
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(8)

Inspection
There shall be an inspection fee of $25 for the third and subsequent inspections for water and sewer service
connections. These will include, but are not limited to, water meter box installations, water and sewer
service line connections, and grinder pump installations. This charge will be paid prior to the third/or
subsequent inspections. The purpose of this fee is to defray the expense of making multiple on-site
inspections to correct previously identified deficiencies.

(9)

Inspection Fee for Water and Sewer Lines
There shall be a fee for the inspection of public water and sewer installations. Such fee shall be $2.87 per
foot for every foot of water main and sewer main constructed and shall be submitted at the time of filing an
application for a land disturbance permit.

(10) Sub-Meter Account Charge
An account charge of $18 shall be paid annually by each customer who has established a sub-meter
account. The payment for this charge will be prorated in equal amounts in the customer utility service
charge billing.
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COMPLIANCE SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting mu/ on Compliance and Other JWatters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Board of Directors

James City Service Authority
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard\· issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of James City Service Authority as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
James City Service Authority's basic financial statements. and have issued our report thereon dated October 24,
2013.

lnter11al Control over Fitumcial Reporti11g
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered James City Service Authority's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements. but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of James City Service Authority's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of James City Service Authority's internal
control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control. such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency. or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness. yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identity all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations. during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However. material \veaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance mu/ Other ~Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether James City Service Authority's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be rep011ed under

Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and comp Iiance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audiling
Standard> in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purposes.

Newport News, Virginia
October 24, 2013
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